# SLOUGH MULTIFUEL EXTENSION PROJECT

Planning Inspectorate Ref. EN010129

## The Slough Multifuel Extension Order

## Land at Edinburgh Avenue, Slough, SL1 4TU

## Document Ref: 2.1a – Draft Development Consent Order – Rule 17 Discussion Draft (Tracked)

The Planning Act 2008

The Infrastructure Planning (Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedure) Regulations 2009 – Regulation 5(2)(b)



## **Applicant: SSE Slough Multifuel Limited**

May 2023 (Deadline 5)

## **DOCUMENT HISTORY**

Document Ref	2.1a		
Revision	1.0		
Author	Katy Abrahams (KA)		
Signed	KA	Date	26.05.23
Approved By	Robin Hutchinson (RH)		
Signed	RH	Date	26.05.23
Document Owner	CMS		

## STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

## 2023 No.

## **INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING**

## THE SLOUGH MULTIFUEL EXTENSION ORDER 202[]

Made	6 April 2023
Laid before Parliament	6 April 2023
Coming into force	6 April 2023

## CONTENTS

## PART 1

## Preliminary

- 1. Citation and commencement
- 2. Interpretation

## PART 2

## Principal powers

- 3. Development consent etc. granted by the Order
- 4. Authorisation of the operation of the extended generating station
- 5. Power to maintain the authorised development
- 6. Benefit of the Order
- 7. Consent to transfer benefit of the Order
- 8. Planning permission
- 9. Existing powers and duties of the undertaker

## PART 3

## Supplemental powers

- 10. Defence to proceedings in respect of statutory nuisance
- 11. Certification of plans and documents, etc.
- 12. Arbitration
- 13. Service of notices

## SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE 1 — AUTHORISED DEVELOPMENT

#### SCHEDULE 2 — REQUIREMENTS

An application has been made to the Secretary of State under section 37 of the Planning Act 2008 ("the 2008 Act")(**a**), in accordance with the Infrastructure Planning (Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedures) Regulations 2009(**b**) for an Order granting development consent.

The application was examined by the Examining Authority appointed by the Secretary of State pursuant to section  $61(\mathbf{c})$  and section  $65(\mathbf{d})$  of Part 6 of the 2008 Act and carried out in accordance with Chapter 4 of that Act and with the Infrastructure Planning (Examination) Procedure Rules  $2010(\mathbf{e})$ . The Examining Authority has submitted a report to the Secretary of State under section  $74(2)(\mathbf{f})$  of the 2008 Act.

The Secretary of State has considered the report and recommendation of the Examining Authority, has taken into account the environmental information in accordance with regulation 4 of The Infrastructure Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017(g), [and has considered the representations made and not withdrawn] and, as a national policy statement has effect in relation to the proposed development, has had regard to the documents and matters referred to in section  $104(2)(\mathbf{h})$  of the 2008 Act.

The Secretary of State, having decided the application, has determined to make an Order giving effect to the proposals comprised in the application on terms that in the opinion of the Secretary of State are not materially different from those proposed in the application.

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 114, 115 and 120(i) of the 2008 Act, makes the following Order—

## PART 1

## Preliminary

### **Citation and commencement**

**1.** This Order may be cited as the Slough Multifuel Extension Order 202[] and comes into force on [Insert Date].

#### Interpretation

**2.**—(1) In this Order—

"the 1980 Act" means the Highways Act 1980(j)

(**j**) 1980 c.66.

<sup>(</sup>a) 2008 c. 29. Parts 1 to 7 were amended by Chapter 6 of Part 6 of the Localism Act 2011 (c. 20).

 <sup>(</sup>b) S.I. 2009/2264, amended by S.I. 2010/439, S.I. 2010/602, S.I. 2012/635, S.I. 2012/254, S.I. 2012/2732, S.I. 2013/522, S.I. 2013/755, S.I. 2014/469, S.I. 2014/2381, S.I. 2015/377, S.I. 2015/1682, S.I. 2017/524, S.I. 2017/572, S.I. 2018/378, S.I. 2019/734, 2020/1534, 2021/978 and 2022/634.

<sup>(</sup>c) Section 61 was amended by Schedule 13, paragraph 18(4) to the Localism Act 2011 and by section 26 of the Infrastructure Act 2015 (c.7).

<sup>(</sup>d) Section 65 was amended by Schedule 13 paragraph 22(2) and Schedule 25, paragraph 1 to the Localism Act 2011 and by section 27(1) of the Infrastructure Act 2015.

<sup>(</sup>e) S.I. 2010/103. This instrument was amended by S.I. 2012/635.

<sup>(</sup>f) Section 74 was amended by Schedule 13(1) paragraph 29(3) and Schedule 25, paragraph 1, to the Localism Act 2011.

<sup>(</sup>g) S.I. 2017/572.

<sup>(</sup>h) Section 104(2) was amended by Schedule 13, paragraph 49 to the Localism Act 2011 and s58(5) of the Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 (c.23).

<sup>(</sup>i) Section 114 was amended by Schedule 13, paragraph 55 to the Localism Act 2011, section 115 was amended by section 160(2) to (6) of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 (c. 22) and section 120 was amended by section 140 and Schedule 13, paragraph 60 of the Localism Act 2011.

"the 1989 Act" means the Electricity Act 1989(a);

"the 1990 Act" means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(b);

"the 1991 Act" means the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991(c)

"the 2008 Act" means the Planning Act 2008(d);

"address" includes any number or address for the purposes of electronic transmission;

"approved variation" means any variations to the TCPA permission or further TCPA permission granted by the relevant planning authority pursuant to section 73 or section 96A of the 1990 Act and in accordance with requirements 8 and 9;

"authorised development" means the development and associated development described in Schedule 1 (authorised development) and any other development authorised by this Order which is development within the meaning of section 32 (meaning of development) of the 2008 Act;

"building" includes any structure or erection or any part of a building, structure or erection;

"commence" means beginning to carry out any material operation, as defined in section 155 of the 2008 Act (when development begins), forming part, or carried out for the purposes, of the authorised development;

"construction environment management plan" means the document certified as the construction environmental management plan by the Secretary of State for the purposes of this Order and submitted with the application on [] including all appendices thereto;

"environmental statement" means the document certified as the environmental statement by the Secretary of State for the purposes of this Order and submitted with the application on [] including all appendices thereto;

"existing generating station" means a generating station within the Order limits comprised of development authorised by planning permission issued pursuant to the 1990 Act including the TCPA permission and further TCPA permission;

"extended generating station" means a generating station within the Order limits which includes (i) the extension of a generating station comprised of the authorised development and (ii) the existing generating station;

"further TCPA permission" means planning permission granted by Slough Borough Council with reference P/00987/025 dated 2 June 2017, and any other approved variations thereto (which shall include for the avoidance of doubt any variations pursuant to Section 73 of the 1990 Act);

"land plan" means the plan certified as the land plan by the Secretary of State for the purposes of this Order;

"maintain" in relation to any part of the authorised development includes inspect, upkeep, repair, adjust, alter, remove, improve, refurbish, reconstruct and replace provided such works do not give rise to any materially new or materially different environmental effects to those identified in the environmental statement, and any derivative of "maintain" is to be construed accordingly;

"the Order limits" means the limits shown on the works plan within which the authorised development may be carried out;

"relevant planning authority" means Slough Borough Council;

"requirements" means, or a reference to a numbered requirement is to, those matters set out in Schedule 2 (requirements) to this Order;

"TCPA permission" means planning permission granted by Slough Borough Council with reference P/00987/051 dated 1 February 2022, and any other-approved variations thereto

<sup>(</sup>**a**) 1989 c.29.

<sup>(</sup>**b**) 1990 c.8.

<sup>(</sup>**c**) 1991 c.22.

<sup>(</sup>**d**) 2008 c.29.

(which shall include for the avoidance of doubt any variations pursuant to Section 73 of the 1990 Act);

"undertaker" means SSE Slough Multifuel Limited (company number 11271136) or any person who has the benefit of this Order in accordance with articles 6 (Benefit of the Order) and 7 (Consent to transfer benefit of the Order);

"works plan" means the plan certified as the works plan by the Secretary of State for the purposes of this Order;

(1) All distances, directions, capacities and lengths referred to in this Order are approximate and distances between points on a work comprised in the authorised development shall be taken to be measured along that work.

(2) Any reference in this Order to a work identified by the number of the work is to be construed as a reference to the work of that number authorised by this Order and shown on the Works plan.

(3) The expression "includes" is to be construed without limitation unless the contrary intention appears.

(4) References in this Order to any statutory body includes that body's successor bodies as from time to time have jurisdiction over the authorised development.

## PART 2

#### Principal powers

#### Development consent etc. granted by the Order

**3.** Subject to the provisions for this Order and to the requirements in Schedule 2 the undertaker is granted development consent for the authorised development to be carried out within the Order limits.

#### Authorisation of the operation of the extended generating station

**4.**—(1) Subject to the provisions of this Order and the requirements in Schedule 2 the undertaker is authorised to operate the extended generating station.

(1) Paragraph (1) does not relieve the undertaker of any requirement to obtain any permit or licence under any legislation other than section 36 of the 1989 Act.

### Power to maintain the authorised development

**5.** The undertaker may at any time maintain the authorised development, except to the extent that this Order or an agreement made under this Order provides otherwise.

#### **Benefit of the Order**

**6.** Subject to article 7 (consent to transfer the benefit of the order), the provisions of this Order conferring power on the undertaker have effect solely for the benefit of the undertaker.

### Consent to transfer benefit of the Order

7.—(1) Except where paragraph (4) applies, the undertaker may with the written consent of the Secretary of State—

(a) transfer to another person ("the transferee") any or all of the benefit of the provisions of this Order and such related statutory rights as may be agreed between the undertaker and the transferee; and/or

(b) grant to another person ("the lessee") for a period agreed between the undertaker and the lessee any or all of the benefit of the provisions of this Order and such related statutory rights as may be so agreed between the undertaker and the lessee.

(2) Where an agreement has been made in accordance with paragraph (1) references in this Order to the undertaker, except in paragraphs (5) and (6), shall include references to the transferee or lessee.

(3) Where the undertaker has transferred any benefit, or for the duration of any period during which the undertaker has granted any benefit, under paragraph (1) —

- (a) the benefit transferred or granted ("the transferred benefit") shall include any rights that are conferred, and any obligations that are imposed, by virtue of the provisions to which the benefit relates;
- (b) the transferred benefit shall reside exclusively with the transferee or, as the case may be, the lessee and the transferred benefit shall not be enforceable against the undertaker; and
- (c) the exercise by a person of any benefits or rights conferred in accordance with any transfer or grant under paragraph (1) is subject to the same restrictions, liabilities and obligations as would apply under this Order if those benefits or rights were exercised by the undertaker.

(4) The consent of the Secretary of State is required for the exercise of powers under this article, except where the transferee or lessee is the holder of a licence under section 6 of the 1989 Act.

(5) Where the consent of the Secretary of State is not required under paragraph (4) the undertaker must provide written notification to the Secretary of State and the relevant planning authority at least 14 days prior to transferring and/or granting any benefit pursuant to this article.

- (6) A notice required under paragraphs (5) must-
  - (a) state—
    - (i) the name and contact details of the person to whom the benefit of the provisions will be transferred or granted;
    - (ii) the date on which the transfer will take effect;
    - (iii) the provisions to be transferred or granted;
    - (iv) the restrictions, liabilities and obligations that will apply to the person exercising the powers transferred or granted; and
  - (b) be accompanied by a copy of the document effecting the transfer or grant signed by the undertaker and the person to whom the benefit of the powers will be transferred or granted.

#### **Planning permission**

**8.**—(1) If planning permission is issued pursuant to the 1990 Act for development any part of which is within the Order limits following the publication of this Order that is—

- (a) not itself a nationally significant infrastructure project under the 2008 Act or part of such a project; and
- (b) required to complete or enable the construction, use or operation of any part of the development authorised by this Order or of the extended generating station;

then the carrying out, use, operation or decommissioning of such development pursuant to the terms of the planning permission is not to constitute a breach of the terms of this Order.

(2) Anything done by the undertaker in accordance with this Order does not constitute a breach of any planning permission issued pursuant to the 1990 Act.

#### Existing powers and duties of the undertaker

**9.** Except as previously provided, nothing in this Order is to prejudice the operation of, and the powers and duties of the undertaker under the 1980 Act, the 1991 Act and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015(**a**).

## PART 3

### Supplemental powers

#### Defence to proceedings in respect of statutory nuisance

**10.**—(1) Where proceedings are brought under section 82(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990(**b**) (summary proceedings by persons aggrieved by statutory nuisances) in relation to a nuisance falling within paragraph (g) of section 79(1) of that Act (statutory nuisances and inspections therefor) no order may be made, and no fine may be imposed, under section 82(2) of that Act if—

- (a) the defendant shows that the nuisance—
  - (i) relates to premises used by the undertaker for the purposes of or in connection with the construction, maintenance or decommissioning of the authorised development and that the nuisance is attributable to the carrying out of the authorised development in accordance with a notice served under section 60 (control of noise on construction sites), or a consent given under section 61 (prior consent for work on construction sites) of the Control of Pollution Act 1974(c); or
  - (ii) is a consequence of the construction, maintenance or decommissioning of the authorised development and that it cannot reasonably be avoided; or
- (b) the defendant shows that the nuisance-
  - (i) relates to premises used by the undertaker for the purposes of or in connection with the use of the authorised development and that the nuisance is attributable to the use of the authorised development in compliance with condition 20 of the TCPA permission; or
  - (ii) is a consequence of the use of the authorised development and that it cannot reasonably be avoided.

(2) Section 61(9) of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 (prior consent for work on construction sites) does not apply where the consent relates to the use of premises by the undertaker for purposes of or in connection with the construction, maintenance or decommissioning of the authorised development.

## Certification of plans and documents, etc.

**11.**—<u>(1)</u> The undertaker must, as soon as practicable after the making of this Order, submit to the Secretary of State copies of—

- (a) the landownership and interests schedule;
- (b) the land plan;
- (c) the works plan;
- (d) the environmental statement;

<sup>(</sup>a) S.I. 2015/596.

<sup>(</sup>b) 1990 c.43. Relevant amendments are as follows: section 82 was amended by Schedule 17, paragraph 6 of the Environment Act 1995 (c.25), section 5 of the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 (c.40) and section 103 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (c.16); and section 79 was amended by sections 101 and 102 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 and by Schedule 22, paragraph 89 of the Environment Act 1995.

<sup>(</sup>c) 1974 c.40. Sections 61(9) and 65(8) were amended by section 162 of, and paragraph 15 of Schedule 15 to, the Environmental Protection Act 1990, c.43. There are other amendments to the 1974 Act which are not relevant to the Order.

- (e) the approved generating station plans named as follows:
  - (i) East Elevation of Consented Development and Proposed Project; and
  - (ii) Plan and East Elevation of Consented Development and Project;
- (f) the TCPA permission granted by Slough Borough Council with reference P/00987/051 dated 1 February 2022;
- (g) the further TCPA permission granted by Slough Borough Council with reference P/00987/025 dated 2 June 2017; and
- (h) the construction environment management plan;

for certification that they are true copies of the documents referred to in this Order.

(2) Where the construction environment management plan, <u>TCPA permission or the further</u> <u>TCPA permission are-is</u> amended, the undertaker must submit a copy of that amended plan or document, as soon as practicable after the approval of the amendment, to the Secretary of State to be certified under paragraph (1).

(3) A plan or document so certified is admissible in any proceedings as evidence of the contents of the document of which it is a copy.

(4) Where a plan or document certified under paragraph (1)—

- (a) refers to a provision of this Order (including any specified requirement) when it was in draft form; and
- (b) identifies that provision by number, or combination of numbers and letters, which is different from the number, or combination of numbers and letters by which the corresponding provision of this Order is identified in the Order as made;

the reference in the plan or document concerned must be construed for the purposes of this Order as referring to the provision (if any) corresponding to that provision in the Order as made.

### Arbitration

**12.**—(1) Any difference under any provision of this Order, unless otherwise provided for in this Order and unless otherwise agreed in writing between the parties, shall be referred to and settled in arbitration by a single arbitrator to be agreed upon by the parties, within 14 days of receipt of the notice of arbitration, or if the parties fail to agree within the time period stipulated, to be appointed on application of either party (after giving written notice to the other) by the Secretary of State.

(1) For the avoidance of doubt, any matter for which the consent or approval of the Secretary of State is required under any provision of this Order shall not be subject to arbitration.

#### Service of notices

**13.**—(1) A notice or other document required or authorised to be served for the purposes of this Order may be served—

- (a) by post;
- (b) by delivering it to the person on whom it is to be served or to whom it is to be given or supplied; or
- (c) with the consent of the recipient and subject to paragraphs (6) to (8), by electronic transmission.

(2) Where the person on whom a notice or other document to be served for the purposes of this Order is a body corporate, the notice or document is duly served if it is served on the secretary or clerk of that body.

(3) For the purposes of section 7 of the Interpretation Act 1978 (references to service by post) as it applies for the purposes of this article, the proper address of any person in relation to the service on that person of a notice or document under paragraph (1) is, if that person has given an address for service, that address and otherwise—

- (a) in the case of the secretary of clerk of that body corporate, the registered or principal office of that body; and
- (b) in any other case, the last known address of that person at that time of service.

(4) Where for the purposes of this Order a notice or other document is required or authorised to be served on a person as having an interest in, or as the occupier of, land and the name or address of that person cannot be ascertained after reasonable enquiry, the notice may be served by—

- (a) addressing it to that person by the description of "owner", or as the case may be "occupier" of the land (describing it); and
- (b) either leaving it in the hands of the person who is or appears to be resident or employed on the land or leaving it conspicuously affixed to some building or object on or near the land.

(5) Where a notice or other document required to be served or sent for the purposes of this Order is served or sent by electronic transmission the requirement is to be taken to be fulfilled only where—

- (a) the recipient of the notice or other document to be transmitted has given consent to the use of electronic transmission in writing or by electronic transmission;
- (b) the notice or document is capable of being accessed by the recipient;
- (c) the notice or document is legible in all material respects; and
- (d) in a form sufficiently permanent to be used for subsequent reference.

(6) Where the recipient of a notice or other document served or sent by electronic transmission notifies the sender within seven days of receipt that the recipient requires a paper copy of all or any part of that notice or other document the sender must provide such a copy as soon as reasonably practicable.

(7) Any consent to the use of an electronic transmission by a person may be revoked by that person in accordance with paragraph (8).

(8) Where a person is no longer willing to accept the use of electronic transmission for any of the purposes of this Order—

- (a) that person must give notice in writing or by electronic transmission revoking any consent given by that person for that purpose; and
- (b) such revocation is final and takes effect on a date specified by the person in the notice but that date must not be less than seven days after the date on which the notice is given.

(9) This article does not exclude the employment of any method of service not expressly provided for by it.

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Energy Security and Net Zero

[Name] Head of Energy Infrastructure Planning Department for Energy Security and Net Zero

Date

## SCHEDULES

## SCHEDULE 1

Article 3

## AUTHORISED DEVELOPMENT

#### In the County of Berkshire

A nationally significant infrastructure project as defined in sections 14(1)(a) and 15 of the 2008 Act and associated development within the meaning of s115(2) of the 2008 Act—

**Work No. 1** - An extension to the Slough Multifuel combined heat and power generating station with the effect that, once extended, the extended generating station will have a gross installed generating capacity of up to 60MW, comprising the following works—

- (a) a boiler primary air preheating system comprising heat exchanger bundles, pipework, valves, pipe supports, thermal insulation, instrumentation, cabling and containment;
- (b) a boiler secondary air preheating system comprising heat exchanger bundles, pipework, valves, pipe supports, thermal insulation, instrumentation, cabling and containment; and
- (c) mechanical modifications to the actuated stream turbine inlet control valve to allow steam capacity to be increased.

### Associated development

Associated development within the meaning of section 115(2) (development for which development consent may be granted) of the 2008 Act in connection with and in addition to Work No. 1 including temporary construction laydown areas, contractor facilities, vehicle parking and cycle storage facilities, to the extent that it does not otherwise form part of that work, as (i) may be necessary or expedient for the purposes of or in connection with the relevant part of the authorised development and (ii) falls within the scope of the works assessed in the environmental statement.

### Article 3

## SCHEDULE 2

## **REQUIREMENTS**

#### PART 1 REQUIREMENTS

#### Interpretation

1.—\_\_\_\_\_In this Schedule –

"condition 17 of the certified TCPA permission" means condition 17 as it appears in the TCPA permission certified pursuant to article 11(1) which states-

17. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Environmental Management Plan shall be submitted to, approved in writing by, and deposited with the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall include provision for:

(a) the parking of site operatives and visitors vehicles;

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

(c) management of construction traffic and access/haul routes and controlled hours of

delivery including;

1) Any alterations to existing points of access between the application site and the highway shall be formed, laid out and constructed in accordance with specifications and with sightlines to be submitted in further detail and approved by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme commenced on site.

2) Specification of haul route(s) and of any temporary signage to be provided to identify the route and promote its safe use,

3) Identification of the times when major items of plant and equipment are to be transported to and from the site.

4) Identification of the routing strategy and procedures for the notification and conveyance of an abnormal or indivisible load authorised by the Highways Agency pursuant to the Road Vehicles (Authorisation of Special Types) (General) Order 2003.

5) Wheel washing facilities and arrangements for removal of mud from public highway.

6) Proposals for communicating information with its terms, subject to any variation which has prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority in conjunction with the Highways Agency and Thames Valley Police.

- (d) Storage of plant and materials to be used.
- (e) A scheme for recycling /disposal of waste from demolition and construction works.
- (f) Before the site works and construction of the development commences, details of all temporary external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- (g) Noise and Vibration Management and Monitoring Plan with quarterly reporting to the Local Planning Authority that covers all demolition and construction activity during construction phase. Noise monitoring locations and noise limits are required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior to the construction phase to safeguard adjacent neighbouring properties from significance annoyances in accordance with British Standard:6472-1 and 5228.
- (h) Dust Management and Monitoring Plan with quarterly reporting to the Local Planning Authority that covers all demolition and construction activity during construction phase. Dust monitoring locations and dust limits are required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior to the construction phase.

- (i) Spillage Plan to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority that will cover all construction and demolition activities to protect the environment from pollution. The commencement of site construction works shall not take place until a scheme detailing the method to be used for pile driving has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
- (j) Noise Control During Construction During the course of the site preparation, demolition and construction phase of the project there shall be a clear plan to control noisy activities during the daytime period. Noisy activities are those that are likely to give rise to noise levels in excess of 100dB(A) sound power level at the source.

There shall be no noisy activities, unless otherwise approved with Slough Borough Council, between the hours of 6:00pm and 7:00am Monday to Friday and at no time during the weekend.

The following plant/activities are listed by way of example of those tools or operations likely to be included in those restricted to daytime period only:

- impact wrenches;
- sheet piling (auger piling would be acceptable);
- concrete scabbling; and
- concrete jack hammering.

In addition any site preparation, demolition or construction activity that may be audible at the nearest residential receptors shall be carried out as far as is reasonably practicable during daytime periods (any day). Any known periods of prolonged out of hours activity that are necessary, e.g. a prolonged concrete pour, that may give rise to noise shall, if approved by Slough Borough Council, be communicated to local residents in advance of the activity taking place.;

"certified construction environment management plan" means the details approved pursuant to condition 17 of the certified TCPA permission and certified pursuant to article 11;

"details approved" means details approved pursuant to conditions of the TCPA permission and further TCPA permission as at 26 May 2023;

(2) references to "development", "authorised development" and "plant" in the conditions attached to the TCPA permission or further TCPA permission identified in this Schedule shall as the context requires be interpreted as including the authorised development and references to "construction", "commissioning", "use", "operation" and "decommissioning" shall as the context requires be interpreted as including the construction, commissioning, use, operation and decommissioning of the authorised development.

#### Commencement of the authorised development

**2.** The authorised development must commence within five years of the date on which this Order comes into force.

### Construction

3.—(1) The authorised development shall be constructed in accordance with –

- (a) the requirements of conditions 11 (prevention of pollution), 20 (noise levels), 24 (access) and 26 (drainage) of the TCPA permission; and
- (b) the details approved, including any revisions approved, pursuant to conditions 17 (construction environment management plan) and 21 (construction compound details) of the TCPA permission.

**3.** Notwithstanding requirement 3(b) the authorised development shall be constructed in accordance with the certified construction environment management plan except to the extent that any revisions approved to it pursuant to condition 17 of the TCPA permission do not give rise to

any materially new or materially different environmental effects to those identified in the environmental statement.

#### Local liaison group

**4.** The local liaison group which was established and operates in accordance with condition 16 of the TCPA permission shall incorporate the authorised development within its remit.

#### Commissioning

- (a) conditions 9 (contaminated land mitigation and remediation strategy verification report),
  29 (noise monitoring programme), 36 (highways scheme) and 37 (pest scheme) of the TCPA permission; and
- (b) condition 6 (parking spaces) of the further TCPA permission

have been satisfied.

## Operating

6.—\_\_\_(1) The authorised development shall be operated in accordance with -

- (a) the requirements of conditions 20 (noise levels), 23 (acceptable fuel type), 28 (dust), 30 (fuel deliveries), 31 (fuel deliveries), 33 (sound systems), 34 (waste hierarchy) and 35 (waste transfer operations) of the TCPA permission;
- (b) the details approved, including any revisions approved, pursuant to conditions 4 (landscaping and tree planting scheme), 9 (contaminated land mitigation and remediation strategy verification report), 10 (surface water drainage), 13 (odour management plan), 18 (fauna management plan), 29 (noise monitoring programme), 36 (highways scheme) and 37 (pest scheme) of the TCPA permission; and
- (c) the details approved, including any revisions approved, pursuant to conditions 3 (cycle parking) and 4 (living wall) of the further TCPA permission.

#### Decommissioning

**7.** The authorised development shall be decommissioned in accordance with the requirements of condition 22 (decommissioning) of the TCPA permission.

## PART 2

## APPROVED VARIATIONS AND PROCEDURE FOR APPROVAL OF REVISIONS

### Approved variation

**8**.—(1) The undertaker must not submit an application for an approved variation otherwise than in accordance with this requirement.

(2) When submitting an application to the relevant planning authority for an approved variation, the undertaker must provide written confirmation that the application does not give rise to any materially new or materially different environmental effects to those identified in the environmental statement in respect of the authorised development.

(3) The relevant planning authority may only positively determine an application for an approved variation if it is satisfied with the undertaker's confirmation under sub-paragraph (2).

### Approved details and revisions to approved details

<u>9.- (1) With regard to any details requiring approval pursuant to the TCPA permission or further</u> <u>TCPA permission, the undertaker must not submit to the relevant planning authority for approval</u> any details or revisions to details approved otherwise than in accordance with this requirement.

(2) When submitting an application to the relevant planning authority in accordance with subparagraph (1), the undertaker must provide written confirmation that the application does not give rise to any materially new or materially different environmental effects to those identified in the environmental statement in respect of the authorised development.

(3) The relevant planning authority may only positively determine an application for approval pursuant to this requirement if it is satisfied with the undertaker's confirmation under sub-paragraph (2).

(4) Following any approval by the relevant planning authority of any revisions to any details approved pursuant to the TCPA permission or the further TCPA permission, the approved details are taken to include the revisions approved pursuant to this requirement.

## **EXPLANATORY NOTE**

## (This note is not part of the Order)

This Order authorises SSE Slough Multifuel Limited (referred to in this Order as the undertaker) to construct and maintain an extension to the existing Slough multifuel generating station and to operate a generating station within the Order limits at a capacity of over 50MW (up to 60MW). This Order imposes requirements in connection with the authorised development.